

BURLINGTON SCHOOL DISTRICT Reopening BSD





BSD Reopening Guidance Document, Version 1 August 5, 2020



Table of Contents

Section 1: Introduction	3
Note from Superintendent Tom Flanagan	3
Reopening Task Force	4
Hybrid Model	4
Section 2: Student and Staff Health Considerations	5
Daily Health Screenings	5
Late Arrivals	6
Isolation Room Procedures	6
Return to School Policies	6
Cases of COVID-19 in School and Contact Tracing	7
BSD Employee COVID Handbook	7
Section 3: School Day Considerations	8
Buses and Transportation	8
Pods, Physical Distancing, and Modified Layouts	8
PreK	8
Electronic Devices	9
Early Dismissals	9
Hand Hygiene	9
Facial Coverings and Personal Protective Equipment	9
Meals During the School Day	10
Food Access on Non-Instructional Days	10
Expanded Learning Opportunities (Afterschool)	10
Support for Students with Special Health and Educational Needs	11
Support for EL Students	12
Section 4: Student Achievement	12
Curriculum Expectations	12
Learning Expectations for Hybrid Model	12
Learning Expectations for Full-Time Remote Learners	13
Grading, Testing, Attendance	13
Section 5: Operational and Facilities Considerations	13
Cleaning and Disinfecting	13
Communal Spaces and Large Group Activities and Public Use of Schools	13
Student Teachers	14
Volunteers, Visitors, Field Trips	14
Building Considerations/Modifications	14
Section 6: Additional Considerations	15
Social-Emotional Health of Staff and Students	15
Child Care	15
Communication Systems	16
Resources for Parents	16
Appendix A: Sample In-person Learning Schedules	17



Section 1: Introduction

Note from Superintendent Tom Flanagan

Since March, dozens of employees have been working hard to ensure plans are in place to safely reopen our schools. A 16-member School Reopening Task Force meets together twice weekly to discuss the work done in 12 distinct working groups that are represented by educators throughout the district. Our planning process has been and continues to be intentional and thoughtful; every decision we make prioritizes equity, engagement, deep learning, and the safety of our students, faculty, staff, and community. I've been impressed with the engagement and commitment throughout this process, as many people have taken time out of their summer break to work to ensure a safe reopening.

The Vermont Agency of Education (AOE) guidance, <u>A Strong and Healthy Start</u>, is the primary guiding document that informs our decision making. The AOE and Vermont Department of Health (DOH) have directed that we start in Step II of the guidance, which states, "schools are

open for in-person instruction with enhanced physical distancing measures and for children who live in the local geographic area only" (p. 4), and includes the following recommendations:

- Whenever feasible, keep classes together to include the same group of students each day, and keep the same teachers and staff with the same group each day. This will need to be addressed differently to meet the educational needs of high school, and maybe middle school, students.
- Restrict mixing between groups.
- Space seating/desks and bedding (head-to-toe positioning) to at least six feet apart when possible.
- Turn desks to face in the same direction (rather than facing each other), or have students sit on only one side of tables, spaced apart.

Given the AOE's recommendations for Step II, the Champlain Valley Superintendents Association (including BSD) decided to implement hybrid, alternating-day models, with half of all students attending on an "A" day, and the other half of all students attending on a "B" day, with Wednesday being reserved as "C" day for remote learning, planning, and cleaning. (Our teams are closely following the state's dedication to high standards of safety and learning.) Districts made this decision after carefully considering the AEO guidance which recommends six-foot physical distancing whenever possible. The only way to achieve this is to have substantially fewer students in any one building or classroom at any one time.

As you read through this document, it's important to remember that there will be changes to some of this document. State and federal guidelines and guidance are frequently changing and our staff are committed to being flexible in our plans. Please visit our <u>Reopening Task Force webpage</u> frequently, where you will find updated versions of this document, FAQs, and more.

Finally, I want to reiterate my thanks to the many people who have engaged with us and expressed thoughts, concerns, and suggestions throughout this process. The work is not done, and I sincerely hope you'll stay engaged.

Sincerely,

Tom

P.S. Please read below to see the make-up of our Reopening Task Force and remember to say "Thank You" to our team when you see them!





Reopening Task Force

We are incredibly grateful to the hundreds of students, teachers, principals, division and support staff, parents, caregivers, and community members who helped craft this plan through engagement in our Town Hall, emailing questions, attending meetings, and offering suggestions. We are especially grateful for weekly meetings between Superintendent Flanagan and our union representatives Andrew Styles (BEA President) and Dwight Brown (AFSCME Chair), and could not have done the work without the many teachers, paraeducators, and other support staff serving on the 12 different working groups.

This has been a truly collaborative process led by people passionate about student learning, safety, and equity!

Thank you to our BSD Reopening Task Force for "Joining the Journey!"

- Zé Anderson-Brown (Director of HR)
- Doug Davis (Director of Food Services)
- Russ Elek (Communication Specialist)
- Tom Flanagan (Superintendent)
- Christy Gallese (Director of Expanded Learning Opportunities)
- Noel Green (Principal, Burlington High School)
- Bonnie Johnson-Aten (Principal, Edmunds Elementary School)
- Nathan Lavery (Executive Director of Finance and Facilities)
- Rebecca McCray (School Nurse, Edmunds Middle School, and COVID-19 Coordinator)
- Laura Nugent (Director of Student Services)
- Len Phelan (Principal, Smith Elementary School)
- Stephanie Phillips (Executive Director of Teaching and Learning)
- Victor Prussack (Community Engagement Lead)
- Sparks (Director of Equity)
- Marty Spaulding (Director of Property Services)
- Lashawn Whitmore-Sells (Principal, Flynn Elementary School)

Hybrid Model

As explained above, BSD will implement a <u>hybrid alternating day model</u> along with the other districts in the region. However, not all districts will follow the exact same model.

In Burlington, we have decided to utilize an ABCAB model in which roughly half of students will attend school on "A" days (Mondays and Thursdays) and half of students will attend on "B" days (Tuesdays and Fridays). We know that across the country, school closures have negatively affected the learning of students who are learning English (ELs) and students with special education needs most and so, with equity driving our decision making, we are offering in-person learning for up to four days a week for these students.

Any hybrid model has significant drawbacks, and we are sensitive to the challenges this provides for families across the city. Our goal is to have success with the hybrid model early on and build confidence among our staff, community, and leaders so that we can safely increase the days of in-person instruction in the fall if the state continues to manage the disease and that is what the updated guidance allows.

Though we are ready to begin implementing our hybrid model, we continue to pay attention to the ever-changing guidance from the state. If further State guidance reduces the physical distancing recommendation from six feet to three feet, our teams will be ready to support more students in our elementary buildings for more days during the week.



Section 2: Student and Staff Health Considerations

Daily Health Screenings

Before Arrival

All student temperatures should be checked before leaving home. All staff will conduct a health screening prior to arrival to their building and complete a health form daily.

Anyone who meets any of the following conditions **must stay home and contact their primary care provider.** (*Details of next steps for school re-entry can be found in the "Return to School Policies located on page six.*)

1) Anyone who has had contact with someone who tested positive for COVID-19 in the past ten days.

2) Anyone is currently quarantining with COVID-like symptoms.

- 3) Anyone who has any of the symptoms listed below or is feeling generally unwell.
 - Fever (100.4°F)
 - Chills or repeated shaking with chills
 - Cough
 - Shortness of breath/difficulty breathing
 - Sore throat
 - Muscle pain
 - Headache
 - New loss of taste or smell
 - Diarrhea
 - Nausea/vomiting

Families should notify the school if their student(s) are staying home due to quarantining or illness, so they can be marked Absent-Excused (AE) by the school. Students should have the ability to access remote learning from home and could be marked as present if submitting work.

Healthy students and staff with the following symptoms/conditions are not excluded from in-person school activities:

- Allergy symptoms (with no fever) that cause coughing and clear runny nose may stay if they have medically diagnosed allergies and follow medical treatment plans.
- Well-controlled asthma.

Upon Arrival

Health Screenings will need to be completed for all students and staff prior to entry into any school building. This currently includes a temperature reading with a touchless thermometer, a yes or no health questionnaire, and hand sanitizing. All staff will complete their screenings at home and complete an additional HR form upon arrival. Elementary and Middle School Students will complete on-site health screening at their schools each morning (details below). High School students will complete a health questionnaire from home each day and have temperatures checked by staff before entering the building.

Both staff and students who appear with symptoms during school hours will consult the school nurse. Students will be placed in an isolation room with a surgical mask on while they wait for their emergency contact to pick them up from school.

On-Site Health Screening Procedures

On-site health screenings take approximately one minute per student. Our class sizes will average 12 students and we will utilize multiple entrances for arrivals to reduce the impact screens may have on the start of school. To keep schools safe, parents will not be allowed in the building during arrival.

PreK-Grade 8



- Students will be assigned to a pod and each pod will have a designated spot outside of school to meet each morning.
- Students will meet their teachers at the designated spot to have a health screening completed outside of the school building by school staff.
 - Parents/Guardians of PreK-Grade 2 students may accompany students to their pod's meeting spot (and help answer screening questions). If possible, parents/guardians should wait until screenings are complete in case their student does not pass the health screening and needs to see their primary care provider.

High School

High School students and parents/guardians will be trained on how to self-screen at home.

- High School students will complete their screening at home via a Google form and their Chromebook.
- Upon arrival at school, students will check in with adults at the entry point to confirm screening is complete.

Once all students are screened, students who passed the screening will proceed inside. Any students who answer yes to any questions on the questionnaire and/or have a fever of 100.4°F, will not be allowed to enter the school and be released back to their parent/guardian.

- If a parent/guardian is still there, the student will be taken home with them.
- If a parent/guardian is not present, students will be sent to the nurse tent to have the nurse contact the parent/guardian for pick up.

Students who do not pass the health screening should contact their primary care provider prior to returning to school.

Late Arrivals

Once pods go in, all exterior doors will be locked. Students will not be able to enter the school as Tardy after 10 AM.

- If an individual student is late, they will report to the main entrance where a screening will happen at the entry checkpoint.
- If a whole bus of students is late, students will go to their pod's designated area outside where they will all complete screening prior to entering the school building.

Isolation Room Procedures

All schools will have a designated room for students displaying COVID-like symptoms to isolate until parent/guardian pick-up.

- Only one student will be allowed in the isolation room at any given time.
- Students will have surgical masks placed on their faces.
- School nurses monitor students' symptoms as needed.
- A record of all students placed in the isolation room will be kept with documentation including the student's name, date, and time and duration student was in the room.

Parents/Guardians are expected to arrange pick-up for their students immediately after being called. If a parent/guardian cannot come, then another emergency contact should be designated to pick the student up. Depending on a student's age and health status, a student could be released to walk or drive themselves home with parent/guardian verbal permission.

Return to School Policies

Guidelines for safe return to school in-person* following exclusion:

• Students and staff should be excluded from in-person activities until they are no longer considered contagious. Those excluded for respiratory symptoms (cough, shortness of breath, congestion, or runny nose) should see improvement before returning to school.



- Students and staff with a fever greater than 100.4°F and no specific diagnosis should remain at home until they have a temperature of 99.5 F or less for 24 hours (per CDC guidelines) without the use of fever-reducing medications (i.e. ibuprofen, acetaminophen, etc.).
 - Temperatures must be monitored at home; notify the School Nurse if no thermometer is available.
- For those who tested positive or have been diagnosed with COVID-like symptoms, return to in-person activities will occur if 10 days have passed since symptoms started, AND they have remained fever free for 24 hours, AND cough or breathing symptoms are improving.
- Anyone who has been diagnosed with an illness or disease *other than COVID* should follow provider directions, treatment, and return guidance.
- Parents/guardians of students must consult with a primary care provider regarding symptoms upon exclusion. The School Nurse must be notified of the outcome of the primary care visit *prior* to school return.

*Note- staff and students may participate in school activities and education remotely if they are feeling well enough to do so. Schools will provide education to students both in-person and remotely.

Cases of COVID-19 in School and Contact Tracing

Parents will be notified via the DOH if their child has been in contact with or is COVID-19 positive after a test. If there is a positive case in the District, the DOH will contact BSD and we will work with the DOH to conduct contact tracing to determine who else is at risk and must quarantine. The school health team will provide them with records of attendance and lists of who interacted with whom on specific dates and times to aid in the contract tracing process. The DOH will conduct the contact tracing and contact employees or parents/guardians of students directly affected by the person who is positive and will provide guidance to those individuals.

If COVID-19 is confirmed in a student or staff member, BSD will follow the AOE's "Strong and Healthy Start Guidelines":

- Close off areas used by a sick person and do not use these areas until after cleaning and disinfecting; wait 24 hours or as long as practical before beginning cleaning and disinfecting to allow droplets to settle.
- Open outside doors and windows and use ventilating fans to increase air circulation in the area.
- Clean and disinfect all areas such as offices, bathrooms, common areas, and shared electronic equipment used by the ill persons, focusing especially on frequently touched surfaces.
- Ensure safe and correct use and storage of cleaning and disinfection products, including storing products securely away from children.
- Participate in contact tracing as requested by the Health Department (see above).
- Communicate with staff and parents/caregivers with general information about the situation. It is critical to maintain confidentiality.

Following the contact tracing process, the DOH will instruct the District in how to proceed with sharing of information and we will be as transparent as we can by law. Decisions about school closure will be made based on guidance from the AOE.

BSD Employee COVID Handbook

The Center for Disease Control (CDC) and the DOH provided guidance to school administrators to inform the safe return to school in the fall. The BSD School Reopening Task Force and subcommittees have spent weeks planning the infrastructure to protect our staff to work safely. Each member's voice and independent lens has played a critical role in supporting the whole district. We developed an <u>HR BSD Employee COVID Handbook</u> that contains reopening information. This guide is an evolving document that will change as new information is received. After consulting the Employee COVID Handbook, staff with COVID-related questions should contact Erin Dye (<u>edye@bsdvt.org</u>).



Section 3: School Day Considerations

Buses and Transportation

Limited bus transportation to and from school on Green Mountain Transit (GMT) busses will be available for BSD students. While GMT will be running their customary "School Trippers" routes (formerly known as neighborhood specials) to and from most district schools, please be advised that rider capacity is significantly reduced on GMT busses due to COVID-19 with a maximum of 18 passengers allowed on each bus (as of August 5, 2020). *Students and families are strongly encouraged to seek alternative transportation whenever possible.*

More information on School Trippers is available on the GMT website.

BSD will continue to provide limited special transportation to and from school for students who qualify for special services under IDEA or ADA.

Pods, Physical Distancing, and Modified Layouts

Students and teachers in grades K-8 will be assigned to learning "pods" to allow for better physical distancing as well as easy contact tracing should a positive COVID-19 case arise in the building. A learning pod model involves placing two adults in the classroom for the entirety of the day, as much as possible. This decreases: bringing new people into a classroom throughout the day, the reliance on substitutes, and the need for students to leave the classroom, thereby lowering the potential of sharing germs. Pods will range in size and will depend on the number of students who opt into the hybrid model.

Additionally:

- Student desks will be spaced apart in the classroom.
- Tape marks will be placed where students will need to line up to indicate physical distancing.
- There will be markings on the floor to show travel flow and distance.
- Traffic patterns will be established and scheduling modifications will be made that provide for maximum physical distancing among groups and allow for one way travel in corridors.
- Sharing of materials will be limited.
- Student's belongings will be separated from others and in individually labeled containers, cubbies, or areas.
- Student supplies will be assigned to a single student (art supplies, lab equipment, computer equipment).
- Electronic devices, toys, books, musical instruments, games, or learning aids will not be shared.
- Students will remain in their pods throughout the school day in grades K-8, but some teachers (i.e., special education, English Learner, unified arts, etc.) will rotate across pods to provide instruction across multiple subjects, enrich our curricular offerings for students, provide specialized student supports and contractual preparation and lunchtime for classroom teachers.

PreK

Preschool students will return to school beginning on September 14, later than the District's school start date of September 8.

- Teachers will contact families to arrange home visits (outside) to meet children and go over this year's schedule.
- Depending on developmental needs, some children will come to school two days a week and others may come three or four days.
- PreK students will follow the District policy regarding masks.
- Teachers are working creatively within the Health and Safety guidance to ensure High-Quality preschool can still be the heart of our program.



- We are creating extended schedules of outdoor time and creative classroom layouts, and incorporating more individual tools so children have their own materials.
- We will use our Restorative Practice models and circle times to teach tolerance, kindness, deep breathing, and self-regulation to help children understand the health and safety guidelines.

Electronic Devices

All BSD students will be issued District-devices to support learning this school year. Students grades PreK-2 will receive iPads, and students grades 3-12 will receive Chromebooks. Devices will need to be returned at the end of the year.

Early Dismissals

Early pickup procedure for Parent/Guardians:

- Only use the main entrance.
- Parents/Guardians will not enter the building for pick-up.
- Students will be escorted from class to the school's main entrance for release to Parent/Guardians upon Parent/Guardian arrival.

*Students may not return to school for the rest of the day after they have left the school building.

Hand Hygiene

BSD will be following the AOE and CDC guidelines for hand hygiene. Below is the direct language from the AOE guidance, "A Strong and Healthy Start."

Schools must put the following procedures into practice to ensure effective hand hygiene:

- All students, staff and contracted service providers should engage in hand hygiene at the following times:
 - Arrival to the facility
 - After staff breaks
 - Before and after preparing food or drinks
 - Before and after eating, handling food or feeding students
 - Before and after administering medication or medical ointment
 - After using the toilet or helping a child use the bathroom
 - After coming in contact with bodily fluid
 - Before and after handling facial coverings/face shields
 - After handling animals or cleaning up animal waste
 - After playing outdoors
 - Before and after playing with sand and sensory play
 - After handling garbage
 - Before and after cleaning
 - Prior to switching rooms or locations
- Proper handwashing includes washing hands with soap and water for at least 20 seconds. If hands are not visibly dirty, alcohol-based hand sanitizers with at least 60% alcohol can be used if soap and water are not readily available (monitor for ingestion of hand sanitizer among young children). Steps for proper handwashing can be found on the <u>CDC website</u>.
- After assisting students with hand washing, staff should also wash their hands.

Facial Coverings and Personal Protective Equipment

Per the "Strong and Healthy Start" AOE guidelines:

All staff and students are required to wear facial coverings while in the building, as well as outside where physical distancing cannot be maintained. CDC recommends facial coverings in



settings where other physical distancing measures are difficult to maintain, especially in areas of significant community-based transmission. Adults doing drop-off and pick-up should wear facial coverings. Instructions for making, wearing, and washing facial coverings can be found on the <u>CDC website</u>.

Cloth masks in various sizes will be provided to all students and staff. Students and staff can provide their own masks as long as it covers their nose, mouth, and chin. Bandanas are not acceptable. We will have extra masks at every school in case anyone forgets their mask at home or needs one for any other reason.

Masks will not be worn while eating meals; students will all need to be seated and physically distanced from others in the same room (or outside). For outside activities, masks can be off as long as appropriate physical distancing is being practiced.

Meals During the School Day

The Burlington School Food Project (BSFP) is looking forward to welcoming students back! Meals will look different this year, but BSFP is committed to ensuring access to nutritious meals year-round.

Breakfast

- Breakfast will continue to be provided free to all students at all sites.
- All PreK-8 breakfasts will be delivered by BSFP to classrooms. They will be handed out by teachers and eaten during the time designated.
- High School breakfast will be set up as a grab-and-go at the entry doors at the start of the school day. A similar setup will be provided at BTC, ONTOP, and Horizon.

Lunch

- Lunch will be delivered directly to all PreK-2nd Grade classrooms by BSFP. All other students will walk to the cafeteria to pick up their meal and *return to their classrooms to eat.*
- We are working with building administrators to ensure proper physical distancing and safety through staggered meal times and allowing for appropriate spacing in lines.
- Families that pay full price will be asked to keep funds on their accounts to cover the cost of these meals as we will not be accepting cash in line.

Supper

• Supper will be served after the completion of the school day at the schools which provide after-school programming.

Food Access on Non-Instructional Days

BSFP is committed to providing meals for all of our students. We plan to provide meals that can be picked up at the end of a student's scheduled in-person day, to be taken home. We will provide access to breakfast and lunch for each day that a student is learning remotely. Families choosing to participate will be charged based on their eligibility. If a student is learning remotely everyday, meals will be available for pickup at your child's school. A parent may pick up meals on behalf of their child. Families that pay full price will be asked to keep funds on their accounts to cover the cost of these meals.

Expanded Learning Opportunities (Afterschool)

Burlington Kids (K-5)

Program Hours:

- Dismissal to 5:30 p.m.
- We will offer staggered pick-up time options beginning at 4 p.m. and families will need to adhere to new dismissal protocols:



- Parents/Guardians will be asked to sign up for a scheduled pick-up time slot (4:00- 4:30, 4:30-5:00, or 5:00-5:30) and will call or text the program cell phone when arriving for pick up. Staff will bring students down from the classroom to the pick-up area to meet parents/guardians.
- Signs will be posted at all entrances clearly indicating that no one may enter if they have symptoms of respiratory illness.
- Outside of an emergency, **no parents/guardians should come into the school building.**
- Parents/Guardians will be asked to maintain social distancing at pick-up while waiting for their child(ren).
- Parents/Guardians will be asked to wear a mask at pick-up, even if not entering the building.
- Parents/Guardians will be encouraged to have the same person pick up students daily.
- Parents/Guardians who are self-quarantining due to close contact with a COVID-19 positive individual should **NOT** do pick-up.
- Parents/Guardians will be asked to pick-up at their scheduled pick-up time (if you are unable to pick up during your scheduled window please contact your site director).
- Parents/Guardians will need to ensure there is one person available to immediately pick up the student from the program if they have developed any symptoms.

Program Structure:

- The program and its activities will adhere to DOH guidelines.
- To limit large groups and cross-group interaction, afterschool students will remain in their school-day classroom with other afterschool students from that class for the duration of the program.
 - All activities will take place in this classroom "pod" or outside, including supper.
- Students may only participate in afterschool if they are physically attending school that day. Therefore, if a student is home for any reason that day, they may not participate in afterschool that day.

Activities:

• There will be dedicated daily academic time and an opportunity for students to help design and decide on the types of enrichment subject-areas we will explore.

Middle and High School

Program Hours:

- In-person dismissal to 5:00 p.m.
- Virtual programming hours may vary depending on activity schedule.

Program Structure:

- All activities will adhere to DOH guidelines.
- Program activities will be a mixture of in-person and virtual options.
- In-person activities will be limited to small groups and the program will work to keep students in their same school day pods where possible.
- Students may only participate in the in-person afterschool activities if they are physically attending school that day. Therefore, if a student is home for any reason that day, they may not participate in the in-person afterschool activities that day.

Activities:

- A broad range of in-person and virtual activities will be provided to students.
- Homework Help will be offered daily both in-person and virtually.

Support for Students with Special Health and Educational Needs

BSD will prioritize services for students with Individualized Education Programs (IEP) by providing the opportunity to choose in-person learning four days per week. Whether in school buildings or in virtual settings, students with disabilities will receive services and accommodations as determined by the student's IEP team. Parents will have input in the development of the plan and student participation is strongly encouraged whenever possible.



Services and accommodations will be provided in accordance with the student's IEP as developed by the IEP team. The team will convene to review the student's plan to determine what accommodations and modifications to services, if any, are required in the in-person, hybrid, and fully remote learning environment. Our goal is to complete the review of all IEPs by September 30, 2020. Guidance has been provided by the AOE describing <u>considerations for IEPs in the fall of 2020</u>.

Students will follow district-wide safety precautions, including the use of masks in school, as much as possible. Exceptions will be made when the student's pediatrician believes wearing a mask is a health or safety risk for the student. Students who do not have special health risks and who are uncomfortable wearing masks will be provided with instruction and a plan to improve the student's understanding and compliance with these safety measures.

Students with disabilities with 504 Plans under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) will be provided with services and accommodations to access the general education curriculum as prescribed by the ADA. All 504 Plans will be reviewed to determine whether modifications are required in the student's plan to ensure access to learning in the hybrid, building-based, and virtual learning modalities.

Students with disabilities under IDEA and ADA will be provided with the same choice for online instruction as offered to students without disabilities. Students with health concerns not addressed in an IEP or 504 Plan will be provided with a health plan developed with the school nurse and family. This health plan will be reviewed as necessary to ensure student safety and access to education. An evaluation under ADA or IDEA should be considered.

Support for EL Students

Students who are English Learners (EL) may experience challenges in accessing learning in the hybrid model. BSD will prioritize services for these students by allowing EL students access to in-person educational services four days per week. EL students may also choose to access learning in the hybrid, alternating day model.

Section 4: Student Achievement

Curriculum Expectations

Students who attend school in both the hybrid and full-time remote learning models will receive high-quality instruction delivered by Vermont certified educators. Curriculum units of study will be aligned with the VT adopted standards and include opportunities for students to engage in learning experiences that connect to transferable skills. Both models are being developed to align with the VT guidelines for instructional time. A cumulative total of between 10 and 27.5 "hours of instructional time" in a calendar week will constitute five school days (16 V.S.A. § 1071(a)). State Board of Education rules (Rule 2312.1).

Learning Expectations for Hybrid Model

Most students will receive in-person learning two days a week and remote learning three days a week. In-person learning will focus on standards-based instruction and skills development along with learning that sets students up for the application of deeper learning or project-based learning during the remote learning days.

During remote learning days, school staff will conference with students daily and students will be asked to collaborate with their peers and to complete projects and other deeper learning activities that require standards-based reading, writing, and math skills. Skill-based lessons will also be available for students to access on their own time and at their own pace since the teacher will be engaged in-person instruction with the other half of their class. Remote learning lessons may include both offline (books, project materials, etc.) and online instruction (such as videos, databases, and



other virtual tools). Students will be expected to use common digital platforms including Seesaw, Google Classroom, and Unified Classroom to access remote learning plans.

On Wednesday when all students are learning remotely, teachers will conference with students, meet with families, and plan for future learning activities with colleagues. The remote day will include a schedule with an entire day of learning.

Sample schedules for in-person learning days can be found in Appendix A. Please note that these are draft, sample schedules that will be tailored at both the school and grade level - they are intended to provide an overview to families of what is included in a day of learning and do not represent exact times or orders of classes. After parents/guardians complete our BSD Enrollment Preferences survey, we will provide more details and sample schedules for remote-learning days.

Learning Expectations for Full-Time Remote Learners

The full remote learning model will require students to access all learning in a virtual environment using the district provided device (iPad or Chromebook). Specific details as to curriculum content and learning platforms will be determined after we know how many students register for this option and from what grades. Based on how many families elect to receive virtual learning, classes may be grouped across grade levels.

At each level (elementary, middle, and high) the District will review available staffing and student/family requests to determine the options for remote learning. In order to provide students and families with flexibility in terms of scheduling, students enrolled in full-time remote learning will engage in a combination of both live, real-time lessons with their peers, as well as independent work. The full remote option will be supported by BSD staff and/or VT educators employed by regional learning collaboratives. Daily attendance is required and will be noted through participation in an online classroom activity. After parents/guardians complete our BSD Enrollment Preferences survey, we will provide more details and sample schedules for full-time remote learning.

Grading, Testing, Attendance

Teachers will provide grade-level instruction based on state and national standards that are aligned with BSD adjusted curriculum maps and scope/sequence documents. Students will receive grades/credit for their work. Teachers will share grade/course level grading expectations at the start of the school year. Parents can expect regular reporting of student progress including end of term report cards.

Unlike in the Spring when we were looking for weekly engagement, there will be an expectation for communication regarding daily attendance between parents and school.

Section 5: Operational and Facilities Considerations

Cleaning and Disinfecting

BSD is committed to maintaining clean and healthy school environments for our students and staff members. To this end, BSD schools will engage in frequent cleaning throughout the day per state regulations regarding cleaning, sanitizing, and disinfecting. To ensure that our school buildings and facilities are properly cleaned each day, all BSD faculty and staff will be provided with training and cleaning supplies to implement procedures that will result in our buildings and facilities being maintained at the necessary levels of cleanliness. Special attention will be paid to high-touch surfaces including door handles, light switches, and bathrooms. Students, other than our youngest ones, will wipe down their own work area and seats several times a day.



Communal Spaces and Large Group Activities and Public Use of Schools

- Large group activities will conform to the maximum number allowed by current state guidance, currently 50 outside and 25 inside.
- Libraries can be opened if physical distancing can be achieved (this will vary from school to school) and restricted to one consistent cohort of students (learning pods). If the library cannot be opened or must be closed, schools will work with librarians to find alternative ways to ensure student access to library materials.
- Group activities with the potential to generate increased respiratory droplets and aerosols will be avoided. This includes activities such as singing and music that involves woodwind or brass instruments.
- Playgrounds:
 - During the School Day, Students may use playground equipment only under the following conditions:
 - Plastic and metal playground equipment will be cleaned frequently and routinely over the course of each day.
 - Staff will enforce physical distancing during playground play.
 - Hand washing/sanitizing stations will be set up on the playground.
 - The public may use school grounds, but may not use school buildings, including restrooms.
 - Signs will be posted requiring the wearing of facial coverings and physical distancing.
 - During Afterschool, playgrounds will be closed to the public and only available for students enrolled and participating in District afterschool programs.

Student Teachers

Student teachers will be present in BSD this year. The District is working closely with our partner colleges and universities to ensure that student teachers meet the necessary health and safety precautions. All student teachers must undergo the BSD employee onboarding process and training, and will be required to complete daily health screenings, as well as adhere to all precautions/directives as outlined in this, and future, guidance.

Volunteers, Visitors, Field Trips

No outside visitors or volunteers will be allowed in the schools this year, except for employees or contracted service providers for the purpose of special education or required support services, as authorized by the school or district.

Field trips are only allowed if the program can maintain all health guidance, as well as guidance from the Agency of Commerce and Community Development.

Building Considerations/Modifications

BSD has carefully examined all of our buildings and facilities to ensure that they comply with federal and state guidelines related to providing safe and healthy school environments for our students, staff, and community members. The district is making many modifications to our schools, facilities, and offices to provide healthy spaces for all. Following are examples of changes or adjustments we are making to meet federal and state standards and guidance:

- Ensuring that our school and facility heating and ventilation systems are properly cleaned and meet all required operating standards per manufacturer.
 - Prior to re-occupancy, operate HVAC systems in occupied mode for a minimum period of one week while assuring the outside air dampers are open.
 - Encourage staff to provide additional outside time and open windows frequently when air conditioning is not being used.
 - Ensure ventilation systems operate properly and increase circulation of outdoor air.
- Setting classroom capacity limits set to ensure proper social distancing that are aligned with guidance from federal and state authorities.



- Removing furniture and other items from classrooms to provide open space for social distancing.
- Installing plexiglass barriers to allow for wellness, provision of special services and EL services, closer student support, and visibility.
- Limiting use of lockers while providing individual storage bins for storing student coats and belongings in the classroom during the school day as needed.
- Replacing commonly used soft-cushioned furniture with hard-surface furniture to allow for surface cleaning.
- Posting signage in multiple languages that direct movement, provide reference points for proper social distancing, instructions for proper handwashing, and other important information and direction.
- Modifying school schedules to maximize learning time and provide for social distancing.
- Repurposing our gymnasiums, auditoriums, and cafeterias.
- Moving breakfast and lunch to classrooms.
- Raising tents at each school and program site to allow for outdoor classroom instruction.
- Suspending large gatherings until the COVID-19 crisis has passed.

Section 6: Additional Considerations

Social-Emotional Health of Staff and Students

Burlington School District continues to work with our community partners to provide supportive services to meet the social/emotional needs of our students and their families.

The district will follow AOE, DOH, and CDC guidelines to support as much in-person learning as possible so that we can best meet the social-emotional needs of students. As the <u>American Academy of Pediatrics states</u>, "Lengthy time away from school and associated interruption of supportive services often results in social isolation, making it difficult for schools to identify and address important learning deficits as well as child and adolescent physical or sexual abuse, substance use, depression, and suicidal ideation." For this reason, we believe an ABCAB will support whole student health (including food access for physical health as well as social-emotional stability) by providing two school days spread throughout the week.

A small workgroup representative of guidance counselors, social workers, and a school psychologist will create a District plan for social-emotional assessment throughout the school year. Our hope is that this assessment will help identify and meet the needs of those who may require additional support services.

BSD recognizes that social-emotional health and well-being of staff is important to the social-emotional health and well-being of students and their families. We encourage all staff to use the valuable resources provided by the state's Invest EAP program at all times. We are also partnering with the Northeastern Family Institute, VT (NFI VT) to provide high-quality professional development for all BSD faculty and staff members on self-care and social-emotional well-being for BSD employees during these extraordinary times.

To address students' overall well-being, BSD is continuing our longstanding partnership with the Howard Center to ensure that we are attending to students' social-emotional needs and that those students who need specialized mental health services are provided with them to ensure student wellness and to help students and families successfully overcome the additional stresses caused by COVID-19.

Child Care

We understand the hybrid model creates hardships for families and may impact some families more than others. We are currently working with the City of Burlington and community partners to determine possibilities for child care (K-5) on remote learning days. The capacity of any program(s) we develop may be limited due to staffing (District staff will be working in the schools) and health-related considerations (exercising caution when mixing student pods, adequate space, etc.).



Communication Systems

BSD is committed to providing regular and frequent communication regarding the District's reopening plans. We will continue to publish weekly updates from the Superintendent and updated FAQ documents and will continue to update our reopening guidance as more information becomes available.

This information will be sent to families via email and/or phone messages and will be posted on social media, and various locations on the BSD website, including the <u>Reopening Taskforce webpage</u>. We are committed to utilizing District resources and Multilingual Liaison support to ensure we are reaching all families in an equitable manner.

Resources for Parents

- 10 Things Families Can Do Now to Prepare for School Reopening
- CDC Posters:
 - Symptoms of COVID
 - <u>10 Ways to Manage COVID-like Symptoms at home</u>.
 - Both posters available in various languages.

Cultivating caring, creative, and courageous people. Join the journey!



Appendix A: Sample In-person Learning Schedules

In-Person Learning Sample Elementary Schedule					
Time	Component	# of Minutes			
7:45 - 8:10 AM	Arrival	25 min			
	Health ScreeningBreakfast				
8:10 - 8:45 AM	 Morning Community Meeting Hand Washing Breakfast Morning Community Meeting Circle 	35 min			
8:45 - 10:00 AM	Math	75 min			
10:00 - 10:15 AM	Snack • Handwashing	15 min			
10:15 - 11:15 AM	Reading	60 min			
11:15 - 11:45 AM	Recess	30 min			
11:45 AM - 12:15 PM	Lunch • Handwashing	30 min			
12:15 - 1:00 PM	Specials (Art, Guidance, Library, Music, PE)	45 min			
1:00 - 1:45 PM	Writing & Word Work	45 min			
1:45 - 2:15 PM	Integrated Social Studies & Science	30 min			
2:15 - 2:50 PM	Dismissal & Closing Community Meeting Pack-Up Closing Community Meeting Circle 	45 min			



In-person Learning Sample Middle School Schedule

Students arrive at school and go to their assigned pod area at 7:40 Pod leader will begin health screening and students will enter their workspace 7:40-8:00

This is a list of minutes and courses that your child will receive at school. This is not the order of when these courses will be delivered.

70 min Math (broken up into two sections to allow a movement break)
70 min Humanities (broken up into two sections to allow a movement break)
70 min Science (broken up into two sections to allow a movement break)
60 min Unified Arts rotation
30 min Body break (run by PE)
30 min Lunch
30 min Advisory/restorative practices & breakfast
30 min Enrichment/intervention

(Time is built in for body breaks, hand washing, and bathroom breaks as needed by each pod.)

Burlington Technical Center Draft Schedule

TIME	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY
8:00-9:35	<u>Students:</u> Sending school time, Screening, Travel time <u>Staff:</u> Instructional Planning time	<u>Students:</u> Sending school time, Screening, Travel time <u>Staff:</u> Instructional Planning time	<u>Staff:</u> Instructional Planning time & Staff Meeting(s)	<u>Students:</u> Sending school time, Screening, Travel time <u>Staff:</u> Instructional Planning time	<u>Students:</u> Sending school time, Screening, Travel time <u>Staff:</u> Instructional Planning time
9:35-9:45	Hand Washing Student Check-in	Hand Washing Student Check-in	Office Hours/Student Check-in for	Hand Washing Student Check-in	Hand Washing Student Check-in
9:46-11:47	In-Person Learning (A-K) Remote Learning (L-Z)	In-Person Learning (A-K) Remote Learning (L-Z)	Program time and support (A-Z)	In-Person Learning (A-K) Remote Learning (L-Z)	In-Person Learning (A-K) Remote Learning (L-Z)
11:48-12:09	Teacher Lunch	Teacher Lunch	Teacher Lunch	Teacher Lunch	Teacher Lunch
12:09-12:19	Hand Washing Student Check-in	Hand Washing Student Check-in	Program time and support (A-Z)	Hand Washing Student Check-in	Hand Washing Student Check-in
12:20-2:21	In-Person Learning (L-Z) Remote Learning (A-K)	In-Person Learning (L-Z) Remote Learning (A-K)		In-Person Learning (L-Z) Remote Learning (A-K)	In-Person Learning (L-Z) Remote Learning (A-K)



BHS DRAFT Bell Schedule

Time	A Day: Monday/Thursday B Day: Tuesday/Friday	Time	Wednesday Virtual/At Home
7:30 - 8:20	Health Screenings/Breakfast/ Homeroom	11:15 - 12:00	Block 1
8:30 - 9:45	Block 1		
9:55 - 11:10	Block 2	12:05 - 12:50	Block 2
11:20 - 12:20	Lunch/Homeroom	12:50 - 1:20	Lunch
12:30 - 1:45	Block 3	1:25 - 2:10	Block 3
1:55 - 3:10	Block 4		
3:05 - 3:25	CallBack/ Office Hours/Supper	2:15 - 3:00	Block 4
3:30 Start	Homework Center/Afterschool Activities/ Athletics/ Clubs/Courses		
	Burlington	Fechnical Center	
Mornin	ng Session: 9:35 - 11:47 am		Session: 12:09 - 2:21pm